AGENDA
NOTICE OF MEETING April 6, 2020 at 9:00 am
City of Canyon City Commission Regular Meeting will take place via Video Conference. Notice is Hereby Given in
Accordance with the Order of the Office of the Governor Issued March 16, 2020.
A Regular Meeting of the Governing body of the City of Canyon will be Held at 9:00 a.m. on the 6th day of April 2020,
in the Commission Chambers of City Hall at 301 16th Street in the City of Canyon by Video Conference (In Order to
Advance the Public Health Goal of Limiting Face-to-Face Meetings Also Called “Social Distancing” to Slow the
Spread of the Coronavirus /COVID-19. There will be No Public Access to the Location Described Above.
The video meeting is hosted through Zoom. It will also be broadcast on YouTube but there will be no interaction
through YouTube. The link to YouTube will be posted on the City of Canyon Facebook and website.
If you wish to have the ability to ask questions, you must join the Zoom meeting
at: https://zoom.us/j/705319857?pwd=RVNGNjdFdmRRT01obGp3SmQySGIyUT09
The Password is: 399468
To address the Commission during ITEM 6 - Public Comment, or on any posted agenda item, you will need to
complete the Speaker Registration Card and submit it no later than 8:30 am, Monday, April 6, 2020. If you do not have
a microphone, Zoom Chat is also available during the meeting.
If you wish to join the meeting by phone, you can dial in at: 13462487799
Webinar ID: 705319857
All callers that have not completed the Speaker Registration Card will be muted for the duration of the meeting. If you
have completed a Speaker Registration Card, you will be un-muted at the appropriate time.
The meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available to the public in accordance with the Open Meetings Act
upon written request.

1.

Call to Order.

2.

Invocation.

3.

Pledge of Allegiance.

4.

Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of March 16, 2020.

5.

Approval of the Minutes of the Emergency Meeting of March 23, 2020.

6.

Public Comment – Comments from Interested Citizens

7.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Resolution No. 09-2020, Ratifying and Extending the First
Amended Declaration of Disaster Order by the Mayor of the City of Canyon of March 30, 2020. A Resolution
of the City Commission of the City of Canyon to Implement Subchapter E of Chapter 418 Title 4 Texas
Government Code Regarding Emergency Management Response to Statewide Epidemic of COVID-19
Together With Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Canyon, Emergency Management Plan.

8.

First Reading of Resolution No. 05-2020 to Consider and Funding Agreement Between the Canyon Economic
Development Corporation and All Who Wander LLC., Relating to the Property Located at 1601 4th Avenue,
Canyon, Texas. The Funding is Based on Business Development.

9.

First Reading of Resolution No. 06-2020 to Consider a Funding Agreement Between the Canyon Economic
Development Corporation and Bean & Burr Coffee Lab., LLC Relating to the New Business to be Established
in Canyon, Texas.
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10.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Audit Presentation for CEDC Year Ending September 30, 2019.

11.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on February 29, 2020 Finance Report by Finance Director Joel Wright.

12.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on February 29, 2020 Investment Report by Finance Director Joel
Wright.

13.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Ordinance No. 1124 Amending Section 51.10 of the Code of
Ordinances to Provide for Developer Participation Agreements to Facilitate Utility Extensions to Serve New
Subdivisions.

14.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Proposed Interlocal Agreement Between the City of Canyon and
WTAMU Regarding Spur 48.

15.

Discuss Potential Project for Texas Community Development Block Grant Program Rural Economic
Development (Main Street Program Downtown Revitalization Grant).

16.

Executive Session Pursuant to §551.071 Consultation with Attorney; and §551.074 Personnel Matters
(Police Chief Appointment).

17.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Items Discussed in Executive Session.

18.

Adjourn.

Joe Price

Joe Price, City Manager
I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board of the Civic Complex of the City of Canyon,
Texas on the 3rd day of April 2020.

Gretchen Mercer, City Clerk

City of Canyon

City Commission Meeting
March 16, 2020
The City Commission of the City of Canyon ,met at 4:30 pm in the City Commission Chambers of
the Civic Complex. Mayor Gary Hinders presided over the meeting with the following Commissioners
in attendance, Mayor Pro-Tem Cody Jones, Roger Remlinger, and Paul Lyons. Commissioner
Randy Ray was unable to attend.
Also present were the following City Staff: City Manager Joe Price, Assistant City Manager Jon
Behrens, City Secretary Gretchen Mercer, Business and Community Development Director Evelyn
Ecker, Director of Public Works Dan Reese, Canyon Economic Development Corporation Board
President Don Lee, Interim Police Chief Ray Resendez, Utility Department Supervisor Eric Whitten,
Interim Fire Chief Vince Whitfill, Director of Finance Joel Wright, Planning and Development Director
Danny Cornelius, City Engineer Dwight Brandt, Parks and Recreation Director Brian Noel, and City
Attorney Chuck Hester.
Item 1.

Call to Order.

Mayor Hinders called the meeting to order at 4:34 p.m.
Item 2.

Invocation.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jones gave the invocation.
Item 3.

Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Lyons.
Item 4.

Approval of Minutes of the City of Canyon Commission Meeting of March 2, 2020.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to approve the minutes
of March 2, 2020 as presented. Motion carried unanimously.
Item 5.

Public Comment – Comments From Interested Citizens.

No Public Comments were made.
Item 6.

Proclamation Recognizing April 1, 2020 as “CENSUS DAY”.

Mayor Hinders read a proclamation stressing the importance of everyone participating in the 2020
Census.
MAYOR HINDERS MOVED TO ITEM 11
Item 11.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Proposed Playground Naming and Approval
of Fund Raising Campaign.

Assistant City Manager Jon Behrens introduced the overall project history for the planned AMBUCS
Park. Mr. Behrens stated the Canyon Parks, Open Space and Recreation Advisory Committee
recommended naming the park “Kylie Hiner Memorial Playground” and agreed that naming the
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playground after Kylie Hiner as significant. Kylie Hiner was loved and embraced by the community
as she made a connection with and considered everyone she met as special. Mr. Behrens went on
to say Kylie’s autism never seemed to get in her way or limit her ability to make friends feel special,
remain independent and achieve success. Mr. Behrens said the Parks Committee hoped the
playground would allow children and adults of all abilities to do the same.
Parks Director Brian Noel presented a slide show of renderings of the proposed park. Vance Hall,
representing AMBUCS, explained the proposed park, known as an “inclusive” park, and comparable
to the playground located at Medi-Park in Amarillo, would allow brothers and sisters to interact. Mr.
Hall said with the ramps and specialized equipment it would allow a child with disabilities to swing
together with their sibling or parent or roll their wheelchair onto a specialized merry-go-round made
for everyone. Mr. Hall stated the price tag of $1.2 million included complete design, construction, all
sidewalks, site work, restrooms, shade pieces, play pieces and playground surfaces. Mr. Hall said
$300,000 has already been raised without even putting the word out.
Mr. Behrens stated former Canyon Mayor Quinn Alexander was heading the fund raising committee
and invited him to speak. Mr. Alexander expressed appreciation to all involved in the project and
spoke to Kylie Hiner’s presence in the community. Mayor Alexander also thanked all involved.
Kylie’s mother, Mary Hiner then addressed the Commission thanking everyone in the community for
their support and love of Kylie. Ms. Hiner stated naming the park in honor of Kylie meant everything
to the family and she knew Kylie would love the idea of everyone enjoying the park no matter their
situation.
After discussion, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to
approve the naming of the park “Kylie Hiner Memorial Playground” and approve of the associated
fundraising campaign. Motion carried unanimously.
Item 7.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Audit of the Financial Statements of the City
of Canyon as of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2019 as Presented by the
Finance Director and Doshier, Pickens & Francis.

Finance Director Joel Wright presented the 2019 Audit for approval. John Merriss of Doshier,
Pickens and Francis was present to answer questions. Mr. Merriss reported the City of Canyon
received a clean audit for 2018-2019.
After discussion, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to
approve the 2019 audit of the financial statements for the City of Canyon as of and for the Year
Ended September 30, 2019. Motion carried unanimously.
Item 8.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Appointment of Auditor for City of Canyon’s
Financial Statement Audit for Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2020.

Director of Finance Joel Wright recommended the appointment of Doshier, Pickens & Francis as the
City of Canyon’s Auditor for FY 2019-2020. Mr. Wright stated he had worked with the firm over the
years and felt they provided a great service.
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After discussion, Commissioner Remlinger moved, duly seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Jones appoint
Doshier, Pickens & Francis as the City of Canyon’s Auditor for FY 2019-2020. Motion carried
unanimously.
Item 9.

Presentation from City Engineer Updating Status of Current Public Works and Parks
Projects.

City Engineer Dwight Brandt updated the City Commission on current projects Brandt Engineers was
currently working on.
Informational only, no action required.
Item 10.

Informational Update on Pro Rata Agreements.

City Manager Joe Price presented information related to Pro Rata Agreements from research as
requested by the City Commission. The City Commissioners expressed appreciation for the
information and directed staff to look into developing the process for implementation.
Item 12.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Official Acceptance of Russell Long Blvd. from
TxDOT.

City Manager Joe Price stated as agreed between the City Commission and WTAMU, it was time to
take official possession of Russell Long Blvd. Mr. Price stated this would allow for WT to do what
they want in making Spur 48 a City Street instead of a State-owned Spur. Mr. Price said the road
must remain open as a public right of way or else possession would revert back to TxDOT. The
following has been agreed on by TxDOT before the City of Canyon takes formal possession.
1. 2” overlay project (trying to begin on Monday, March 16, 2020 – weather permitting)
2. Clean ditch near Hospital Drive
3. Install pavement markings and apply new striping after overlay
At the request of the City of Canyon, TxDOT agreed to the following:
1. Fix identified areas that have base failures (Staff and Engineer walked entire Spur with
TxDOT to identify these areas)
Mr. Price said City Staff was currently in negotiations on the Interlocal agreement with WT for the
continued maintenance of Russell Long Blvd. and that it would be brought before the Commission
for approval.
After discussion, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones Moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to
formally accept the Transfer of Right of Way for Russell Long Boulevard (Spur 48) and authorize the
Mayor or City Manager to accept the Transfer upon the completions as written in Resolution No. 082019. Motion carried unanimously.
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Item 13.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on 2020-2021 Budget Commitment to Purchase
Two (2) Patrol Ford Explorers

Interim Police Chief, Captain Ray Resendez, presented information related to ordering police patrol
vehicles for 2021. Captain Resendez stated in order to be able to get 2021 Ford Explorer Police
Pursuit Vehicles before Ford Motor Company orders a line shutdown, it was imperative for police
departments to order early. Captain Resendez said to meet the timeline Commission approval was
needed for funding of 2 patrol Ford Explorers for the 2020-2021 budget. Captain Resendez said the
cost for the two 2021 Ford Explorer Police Pursuit Vehicles was $47,960 each, for a total of $95,920.
After discussion, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to
approve a commitment for the allocation of funds to immediately purchase two 2021 Ford Explorer
Police Pursuit Vehicles for the Canyon Police Department. Motion carried unanimously.
Item 14.

Executive Session Pursuant to §551.071 Consultation with Attorney, §551,072 Real
Property, §551,074 Personnel Matters (Police Chief, Fire Chief, Planning and Zoning
Board Appointment), and §551.087 Economic Development.

Mayor Hinders indicated the Commission would adjourn into Executive Session at 6:20 pm.
Item 15.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Items Discussed in Executive Session.

Upon returning from Executive Session at 7:06 pm, the following action was taken.
Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to appoint Bryant Coon
to the vacated seat of Tim Gilliland on the Planning and Zoning Commission. Motion carried
unanimously.
Item 16.

Adjourn

There being no further business, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved this meeting be adjourned.

______________________________
Gary Hinders, Mayor
ATTEST:

________________________________
Gretchen Mercer, City Secretary

City Commission Emergency Meeting
March 23, 2020
The City Commission of the City of Canyon ,held an Emergency Meeting at 4:30 pm in the City
Commission Chambers of the Civic Complex pursuant to Government Code Section
551.045(b)(2)(c). The COVID-19 pandemic created an emergency or matter of urgent public
necessity requiring the City Commission to deliberate and take action in response. Mayor Gary
Hinders presided over the meeting with the following Commissioners in attendance, Mayor Pro-Tem
Cody Jones, Roger Remlinger, and Paul Lyons and Randy Ray.
Also present were the following City Staff: City Manager Joe Price, Assistant City Manager Jon
Behrens, City Secretary Gretchen Mercer, IT Manager Shaun Holtman, Street and Solid Waste
Supervisor Brendon Banner, Director of Public Works Dan Reese, Interim Police Chief Ray
Resendez, Utility Department Supervisor Eric Whitten, Director of Finance Joel Wright, Planning and
Development Director Danny Cornelius, Assistant Librarian Andrea High, City Engineer Dwight
Brandt, and City Attorney Chuck Hester.
Item 1.

Call to Order.

Mayor Hinders called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m.
Item 2.

Invocation.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jones gave the invocation.
Item 3.

Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Lyons.
Item 4.

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Resolution No. 08-2020, Ratifying the
Declaration of Disaster Order of March 18, 2020. A Resolution of the City Commission
of the City of Canyon to Implement Subchapter E of Chapter 418 Title 4 Texas
Government Code Regarding Emergency Management Response to Statewide
Epidemic of COVID-19 Together with Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of the City
of Canyon, Emergency Management Plan.

City Manager Joe Price presented Resolution No. 08-2020 for consideration. Mr. Price explained
the response to COVID-19 pandemic and the Declarations of Disaster put in place by Texas
Governor Greg Abbott.
After discussion, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved, duly seconded by Commissioner Remlinger to adopt
Resolution No. 08-2020 as presented. Motion carried unanimously.
Item 5.

Update from City Manager Joe Price on Steps Being Taken by City Staff Regarding
COVID-19.

City Manager Joe Price discussed internal protocols in place for the City of Canyon staff stressing
the importance of adaptability using the examples of Library Director Janice Doan supporting HR as
needed, and Library Assistant Andrea High being appointed as Interim PIO. Mr. Price stated the
importance of community support of local restaurants and businesses during this difficult time and
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applauded the Canyon Chamber of Commerce, and businesses for stepping up. Mayor Hinders
also commended local businesses and restaurants and added appreciation towards the leaders of
Canyon for stepping up and setting the example for all.
Item 6.

Update on Creation of Incident Management Team (IMT) – City of Canyon.

City Manager Joe Price explained the City of Canyon had begun the process of implementing the
Incident Management Team (IMT). Mr. Price stated Interim Fire Chief Vince Whitfill was serving as
the IMT Commander with David Hoff heading up the IMT Team. Mr. Hoff then gave the history of
Incident Management Teams stating they were created in the 1980’s due to the wildfires in California.
Item 7.

Discussion on What Warrants an Emergency Meeting and Requirements that Must be
Met to Hold one.

City Attorney Chuck Hester stated this meeting was called to expand the Disaster Declaration signed
by Mayor Hinders March 18, 2020 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Mr. Hester then gave a
brief explanation of qualifications to call an Emergency meeting.
Item 8.

Adjourn

There being no further business, Mayor Pro-Tem Jones moved this meeting be adjourned at 5:13
pm.

______________________________
Gary Hinders, Mayor
ATTEST:

________________________________
Gretchen Mercer, City Secretary

AGENDA

REGARDING ITEM 7

To:

Mayor and Commission

From:

Chuck Hester, City Attorney

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Resolution No. 09-2020, A
Resolution of the City Commission of the City of Canyon Ratifying and
Extending the First Amended Declaration of Disaster by the Mayor of the City
of Canyon in Response to Statewide Epidemic of COVID-19 Consistent With
the Governor’s Executive Order GA-14.

As you know, things have moved quickly over the past two or three weeks. For example:
March 13- the President and Texas Governor each declared a state of emergency related to the
COVID-19 virus;
March 13- the Texas Supreme Court and Texas Court of Criminal Appeals issued the first of
several emergency orders;
March 18- the Mayors of Canyon and Amarillo signed initial local disaster declarations;
March 19- Governor Abbott issued Executive Order GA-08 having the force of law statewide;
March 23- Canyon City Commission extended the Mayors declaration ;
March 30- the Mayors of Canyon and Amarillo signed a first amended declaration of disaster;
March 31- Governor Abbott issued Executive Order GA-14 superseding GA-08 and creating
a statewide standard suspending certain statutes related to local disaster declarations at the
municipal and county level to prevent inconsistent local requirements and inter jurisdictional
disputes. GA-14 allows municipalities to enforce the Governor’s Executive Order and any
local rule not inconsistent with GA-14.
Therefore, Resolution 09-2020 is offered for that purpose and subject to GA-14.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
I move to (approve / not approve) Resolution No. 09-2020 Ratifying and Extending the First
Amended Declaration of Disaster by the Mayor of the City of Canyon.

City of Canyon

RESOLUTION NO. 09-2020
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF CANYON RATIFYING AND
EXTENDING THE FIRST AMENDED DECLARATION
OF DISASTER BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF
CANYON IN RESPONSE TO STATEWIDE EPIDEMIC
OF COVID-19 CONSISTENT WITH GOVERNOR’S
EXECUTIVE ORDER GA-14.
WHEREAS, the President of the United States declared a state of emergency related to a nationwide
epidemic of COVID-19 which threatens the entire country; and,
WHEREAS, the Governor of Texas declared a state of emergency relating to the epidemic of COVID-19
which threatens the State of Texas; and,
WHEREAS, the Texas Department of State Health Services jointly with the Governor declared a statewide
health disaster; and,
WHEREAS, the Mayor of Canyon, acting pursuant to TEX. GOV’T CODE §418.108, declared a state of
disaster within the City of Canyon on March 18, 2020; and,
WHEREAS, the Mayor of Canyon signed a First Amended Declaration of Disaster on March 30, 2020;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
CANYON, TEXAS:
1.

To the extent consistent with GA-14, the First Amended local disaster declaration by the
Mayor on March 30, 2020 is extended to April 30, 2020 or the duration of the Governor’s
declaration of a state of emergency or disaster declaration whichever shall first occur; and,

2.

The Mayor or in his absence the Mayor Pro Tem is designated to carry out the duties
required by Executive Order GA-14 or other provisions of Texas law.

3.

To the extent public funds are required and lawfully appropriated for such purpose the
expenditure of such funds shall be exempt from the competitive bidding procedure
generally required by TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE §252.021 pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T
CODE §252.022 (a)(1) and (2) for the duration of the local disaster declaration.

4.

The provisions of the Emergency Management Plan required and authorized by §92.03 of
the Code of Ordinances are in effect as of the date of the adoption of this resolution. The
penalty for violations as set forth in code section 92.99 are now in effect.

ADOPTED ON APRIL 6, 2020

GARY HINDERS, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Gretchen Mercer, City Clerk
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RESOLUTION

NO. 08- 2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
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WHEREAS, the President of the United States declared a state of emergency related to a
nationwide epidemic of COVID- 19 which threatens the entire country; and,
WHEREAS, the Governor of Texas declared a state of emergency relating to the epidemic
of COVID- 19 which threatens

the State of Texas; and,

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of State Health Services jointly with the Governor
declared a statewide health disaster; and,
WHEREAS,
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to
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Gov' T CODE § 418. 108,

declared a state of disaster within the City of Canyon on March 18, 2020;
NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION

OF THE CITY

OF CANYON, TEXAS:
1.

The local disaster declaration by the Mayor on March 18, 2020 is extended for the
duration of the Governor' s declaration of a state of emergency or disaster
declaration as amended or extended; and,

2.

Pursuant

to § 418. 1015

TEX.

Gov' T CODE,

the Mayor is designated as the

emergency management director of the City or in his absence the Mayor Pro Tem.
The Mayor or in his absence, the Mayor Pro Tem, may designate an emergency

management coordinator for the City of Canyon to carry out the duties and

responsibilities required by the provisions of Subchapter E, CH 418 Title 4 TEXAS
GOVERNMENT CODE.
3.

To the extent public funds are required and lawfully appropriated for such purpose
the expenditure of such funds shall be exempt from the competitive bidding

procedure generally required by TEX. Loc. Gov' T CODE § 252. 021 pursuant to TEx.
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AGENDA

REGARDING ITEM 8

To:

Joe Price, City Manager

From:

Evelyn Ecker, Executive Director, CEDC

Date:

April 1, 2020

Re:

First Reading of Resolution No. 05-2020 To Considers a Funding Agreement
Between the Canyon Economic Development Corporation and All Who
Wander LLC. Relating to the Property Located at 1601 4th Avenue, Canyon,
Texas . The Funding is based on Business Development.

Bill Gaylosh, owner of Taos Mountain Outfitters in Taos, New Mexico has chosen to expand
his business and open a second store in Canyon. The store in Taos has been recognized as the
Best Outdoor Store in the US, Best Outdoor Store in the Southwest and the Best Store in Taos
for outdoor gear for skiing, sunglasses and shoes. Because Canyon is home to Palo Duro
Canyon State Park, Bill determined that a similar store in Canyon would be a natural fit.
The store will be located at 1601 4th Avenue, which is the property owned by the CEDC. A
Lease with the Option to Purchase has been agreed upon including a purchase price
established and monthly lease rates. The Lease with the Option to Purchase is three (3) years.
The new business will hire 5-6 employees. Job creation and retention incentive is based on
the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) quarterly report filing for wages paid. The
incentive is 10% of the total payroll reported, not to exceed $42,000. The incentive starts
when the first quarterly report is filed. This is capped at $42,000 or three years, whichever
comes first.
The owner would like to have the store opened before Memorial Day weekend. Depending on
the current health situation, it may mid-summer.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
No recommendation since this is the first reading. Second and final reading will be April
20, 2020.

City of Canyon

RESOLUTION NO. 05-2020
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF CANYON APPROVING PROJECT
FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN ALL WHO
WANDER, LLC AND CANYON ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION RELATING TO
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1601 4th AVENUE,
CANYON, TEXAS. THE FUNDING IS BASED ON
NEW BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT.

WHEREAS, on MARCH 12, 2020 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation (“CEDC”)
conducted a public hearing regarding the use of sales and use tax revenues collected pursuant to
the Development Corporation Act of 1979, TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE CHAPTERS 501-505, (“the Act”)
to consider a funding agreement the primary purpose of which is the developing, stabilizing,
diversifying, and expanding the economy through the retention, recruitment, and expansion, of
employment opportunities of the citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area and to enhance the
quality of life of the citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area; and,
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Canyon, Texas, finds it to be in the public interest
for CEDC to execute a Project Funding Agreement between the Canyon Economic Development
Corporation and All Who Wander, LLC., an entity qualified to do business in Texas, on the terms
and conditions set forth in the Project Funding Agreement approved by the CEDC board and
presented to the City Commission for consideration and approval.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF CANYON, TEXAS:
That the Project Funding Agreement by and between CEDC and All Who Wander, LLC be, and
they are hereby approved, and the sales tax revenue collected pursuant to “the Act” by CEDC may
be used for the primary purpose of financial assistance for new business development. The sales
tax revenue referred to in this Resolution shall be the revenue on deposit in Sales Tax Improvement
Fund (Fund 40) for direct costs related to the project.
INTRODUCED at the First Reading on the 6th of April, 2020, and Adopted on the Second Reading
on the 20th of April, 2020.

GARY HINDERS, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Gretchen Mercer, City Clerk

RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY – ALL WHO WANDER, LLC

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT
ALL WHO WANDER, LLC
This agreement is made by and between the CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (“CEDC”), a Texas non-profit corporation duly organized and existing pursuant
to the TEXAS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ACT and ALL WHO WANDER, LLC, a Texas
Limited Liability Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Second Party.”)
1.

The purpose of this agreement is to facilitate the proper use of funds held and administered
by the CEDC, a tax supported non-profit corporation whose primary income is from sales
tax collected within the City of Canyon and dedicated exclusively to economic
development. The sales tax supporting CEDC is authorized as a local option under Chapter
504 and 505 TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, formerly TEX. REV. CIV. STAT. ART. 5190.6 §4B, the
primary purpose of which is the developing, stabilizing, diversifying, and expanding the
economy through the retention, recruitment, expansion, and employment opportunities of
the citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area and to enhance the quality of life of the
citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area.

2.

The project and performance requirements to be implemented by means of this agreement
are described as follows:

3.

a.

The building owned by CEDC has been renovated and updated and is substantially
ready to occupy; however, Second Party shall be responsible for it’s own trade
fixtures, decoration and other leasehold improvements such as shelving and display
equipment.

b.

The leased property is described as Lot 11 Block 33, Original Town of Canyon,
Randall County, Texas described in a separate Lease with Option to Purchase
between the parties. Remodel and construction will take place at this property only.

c.

Second Party will remain in business in Canyon for a period of five (5) years from
the date of initial funding by CEDC engaged in a retail business which collects and
remits sales tax on retail sales to the public. Retail business means a business that
collects sales tax and remits sales tax as defined in the North American Industry
Classification System (NAICS) which is incorporated by reference.

d.

Should any part of the financial incentives provided by CEDC be used by
Second Party to purchase furniture, fixtures or equipment, CEDC shall have
a lien pursuant to Chapter 9 of the TEXAS BUSINESS AND COMMERCE CODE on
all such property which shall attach at the moment of purchase and shall
extend to proceeds and after acquired property. CEDC as secured party may
at any time file a financing statement to perfect its security interest in the
collateral to secure the obligations of Second Party hereunder.

CEDC will lease the building and land described in Paragraph 2(b) above for the purpose
of the business venture contemplated by this agreement, by a separate lease agreement
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providing for a primary term of three (3) years, a renewal term of three (3) years, an option
to purchase and right of first refusal in favor of CEDC to repurchase the property as more
specifically set forth in such lease agreement. CEDC shall also provide the following cash
incentives if Second Party is not in default hereunder as follows:
a.

Job creation and retention incentives equal to 10% of the total payroll reported
quarterly to the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) payable 30 days following
receipt of the TWC quarterly report by CEDC not to exceed $42,000 and for a
period not to exceed 3 years beginning with the date of the first TWC report.

b.

All other terms and provisions of this agreement notwithstanding, the obligations
of the parties hereto are expressly made contingent upon the following:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

approval of the financial incentives by the CEDC Board;
approval of the financial incentives by the Canyon City Commission;
compliance with the requirements of the TEXAS DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ACT; and
provided that all obligations of CEDC hereunder shall terminate if Second
Party fails to qualify for funding of financial incentives within 12 months
from the date this agreement is signed by Second Party (the effective date).

4.

The failure of Second Party to fully and timely comply with any performance requirement
shall be an act of default by Second Party which shall entitle the CEDC to suspend further
funding and, at its option, to terminate this agreement by written notice delivered pursuant
to paragraph 9. In such event, all financial incentives provided by CEDC to Second Party
shall be repaid to CEDC upon demand.

5.

Second Party agrees to undertake the following actions in order to accomplish the project:

6.

a.

Comply at all times with the requirements of paragraph 2 of this agreement during
the term of this agreement.

b.

Permit an audit by the CEDC of the books and financial records of Second Party,
to determine whether Second Party is in compliance with this agreement.

c.

Permit periodic inspection of improvements to the property described in Paragraph
2 if any part of the funding or financial incentives is used to improve real property.

Second Party makes the following covenants and warranties to the CEDC and agrees to
timely and fully perform the following obligations and duties:
a.

Any false or substantially misleading statement contained herein or the failure of
Second Party to comply and fully perform as required in this agreement shall be an
act of default by Second Party. Failure to comply with any covenant or warranties
shall constitute an act of default and entitle the CEDC to suspend further funding
and at its option to terminate this agreement by written notice in accordance with
paragraph 9 below.
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b.

Second Party is authorized to do business in Texas, is in good standing in the State
of Texas and shall remain in good standing in the State of Texas during the term of
this agreement.

c.

The execution of this agreement has been duly authorized by the governing body
of Second Party and all necessary corporate approvals have been obtained. Second
Party’s designated agent or officer executing this agreement is duly authorized and
empowered to execute this agreement and bind Second Party to the covenants,
warranties and other terms of this agreement. Second Party’s execution of this
agreement and the performance thereof is not contrary to any law, rule, regulation,
or provisions of Second Party’s organizational documents or any contract,
instrument, or agreement to which Second Party is a party or by which it may be
bound at the time this agreement is executed. The necessary authority for the agent
whose signature that appears below is evidenced by a resolution or certificate
furnished to CEDC or attached to this agreement.

d.

No litigation or governmental proceeding is pending or to the knowledge of Second
Party is contemplated or threatened against Second Party or affecting its operations
or business that may result in any material or adverse change in Second Party’s
business, properties, or operations. To Second Party’s knowledge, no additional
consent, approval, or authorization of a governmental entity or other authority is
required in connection with the execution and performance of this agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby.

e.

To Second Party’s knowledge no certificate or statement delivered by Second Party
to CEDC in connection with this agreement or any transaction contemplated by this
agreement contains any untrue statement or fails to state the facts necessary to keep
the statements contained therein from being misleading or false.

f.

There are no bankruptcy proceedings or other legal proceedings currently pending
or contemplated affecting the Second Party. The Second Party has not been
informed of any intent to initiate involuntary bankruptcy proceedings against
Second Party.

g.

To its knowledge Second Party has acquired and maintained all necessary rights,
licenses, permits, and authority to carry on its business in Texas and to perform the
terms of this agreement and will continue to use its best efforts to maintain all
necessary rights, licenses, and permits in current status and good standing.

h.

The funds provided by CEDC shall be utilized solely for the purpose of the project
as stated in this agreement and within the scope of the project as stated in this
agreement and for no other purpose.

i.

Second Party shall pay all taxes and assessments due and owing to all taxing
authorities having jurisdiction over Second Party’s property and business
operations. In addition, Second Party shall timely pay all employment, income,
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franchise, and other taxes due and owing by Second Party to all local, state, and
federal entities.

7.

8.

j.

Second Party shall complete the project required by this agreement and shall
provide the necessary staff and employees for the completion and performance of
this agreement.

k.

Second Party shall timely and fully perform and comply with all terms and
conditions of this agreement.

l.

Upon written request of CEDC Second Party shall notify CEDC in writing of
substantial changes in the management of Second Party within seven (7) days.
Substantial changes shall mean changes in executive officers, board members, or
managers.

m.

The Second Party agrees that with regard to all activities arising out of this
agreement, the Second Party shall fully comply with all civil rights acts and
specifically will not discriminate against any person upon the basis of race, color,
national origin, gender, or by reason of being disabled.

The CEDC, under the following circumstances and at the sole discretion of its board of
directors, may suspend the obligations under this agreement or may terminate this
agreement without liability to the CEDC upon:
a.

The filing of bankruptcy proceedings or the appointment of a receiver of Second
Party or any part of its assets or property and failure of such bankruptcy or
receivership to be discharged within sixty (60) days of filing.

b.

The adjudication of Second Party as a bankrupt.

c.

A change in ownership of Second Party which constitutes a material change in the
nature of Second Party’s business and operations.

Second Party agrees to the following reports and monetary requirements in connection with
the project:
a.

Second Party shall provide periodic reports as requested by the CEDC.

b.

During normal business hours, Second Party shall allow a representative of the
CEDC reasonable access to its books and records to verify compliance with this
agreement. CEDC agrees to maintain the confidentiality of such records.
Information shall be used only for the purpose of administering the funding
provided by CEDC pursuant to this agreement and for no other purpose; provided
however, CEDC may, if required by legal process or at the direction of the office
of the Attorney General provide such documentation to a third party as is required
by the Attorney General or pursuant to such legal process.
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9.

Should Second Party fail to timely, fully, and completely comply with any one or more of
the requirements, obligations, duties, terms, and conditions or warranties of this agreement
such failure shall constitute an act of default by Second Party and, if not fully and
completely cured within 60 days after written notice by CEDC to Second Party, the CEDC
may terminate this agreement and pursue any legal remedies existing under the law;
provided however, that Second Party’s liability under this agreement shall be limited to the
immediate return by Second Party of all funds or other economic incentives provided by
the CEDC and any consideration previously paid to Second Party by the CEDC. The rate
of interest on all funds paid by the CEDC to Second Party subject to refund shall be 6%
per annum from the date of default. In the event CEDC should prevail in any litigation to
recover funds pursuant to this paragraph, the CEDC shall, in addition to all other damages
provided by this paragraph, be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses
of litigation.

10.

In the event of unforeseeable delays, in the performance of this agreement by Second Party,
or force majeure, and upon a reasonable showing by Second Party that it has immediately
and in good faith commenced and is diligently and continuously pursuing the correction,
removal, or abatement of such delays by using its best efforts, CEDC may consent and
excuse any such delay. The failure by Second Party to continuously and diligently pursue
compliance shall constitute an act of default.

11.

Any delay by the CEDC in providing notice of default to Second Party, shall in no event
be deemed or constitute a waiver of such default by CEDC or waiver of any of its rights
and remedies available under this agreement or at law or in equity.

12.

Any waiver provided by CEDC to Second Party of an act of default shall not be deemed to
constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any other existing or future act of default by
Second Party even if the act or default is of the same or a similar nature.

13.

Second Party specifically agrees that CEDC shall only be liable to Second Party for the
amount of money actually budgeted and committed to the project described in this
agreement. CEDC shall not be liable or held responsible for any other direct or indirect
costs, attorney’s fees, court costs, actual or consequential damages, direct or indirect, for
any act of default by CEDC under the terms of this agreement. It is further stipulated and
agreed that CEDC shall only be required to pay the amount of the project cost out of its
sales tax revenues held and administered pursuant to the Development Corporation Act for
the fiscal year in which the funding under this agreement is due together with
unencumbered funds then on hand and from no other source. It is specifically agreed
however, that in the event actual total sales tax revenues collected by CEDC for any year
during which this agreement is to be performed should be less than the total amount of all
grants to all contracting parties for that year, then in that event, CEDC shall fund projects
in the order the grants were awarded after payment of CEDC’s usual administrative cost
and expenses. All contracting parties shall receive only their share of the available sales
tax revenue for that year, less CEDC’s customary and usual administrative costs and
expenses and CEDC shall not be liable to any contracting party for any deficiency for that
time or in the future. In the event of such revenue shortfall, CEDC will provide written
notice to all contracting parties affected by the revenue shortfall along with such
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documentation as will allow the contracting party to ascertain their share of the funding to
be provided.
14.

This agreement incorporates the entire agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any
oral or written previous and contemporaneous agreements between the parties relating to
the matters covered by this agreement.
Except as otherwise provided herein, this
agreement cannot be modified or amended without a written agreement of the parties.

15.

No term or provision of this agreement or an act of the CEDC in the performance of this
agreement shall be construed as making or constituting Second Party or its employees, or
agents, partners of the CEDC or employees of the CEDC. This contract shall not benefit
any third party not a direct party to this agreement.

16.

The termination of this agreement as provided herein may be upon mutual agreement of
the parties or pursuant to the provisions hereof relating to default. The termination of this
agreement either by mutual agreement or by notice served by the CEDC shall extinguish
all rights, duties, and obligations of the CEDC and Second Party except as provided herein.

17.

This agreement may be executed in a number of identical counterparts each of which shall
be deemed an original upon execution and shall constitute the same instrument.

18.

This agreement is made pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and shall be governed
and interpreted under the laws of the State of Texas without regard to any conflict of laws
provision. Venue in any litigation arising out of the execution or performance of this
agreement shall be in the court of appropriate jurisdiction in Randall County, Texas and in
no other Venue. Second Party, by signing this agreement, consents to and waives any
objections to in personam jurisdiction in Randall County, Texas.

19.

In the event one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement should, for any
reason, be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality,
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this agreement. This agreement
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had not been
contained herein.

20.

This agreement is subject to all legal requirements contained in the Municipal Charter of
the City of Canyon and Code and Ordinances of the City of Canyon and all other applicable
state and federal laws and regulations. Second Party agrees that, in compliance with this
agreement, it will promptly comply with all applicable laws, regulations, orders, and rules
of the state, city, and other governmental entities.

21.

This agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors, and (where
permitted) assigns. This agreement may not be assigned by either party without the specific
prior written consent of the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
conditioned. Provided however, that in the event Second Party transfers all or substantially
all its assets to another entity or merges with another entity to the extent that the underlying
purpose of this agreement cannot, in the sole discretion of the CEDC’s board of directors,
be accomplished, the CEDC shall have the option to suspend its performance under this
agreement or terminate this agreement.
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22.

Second Party represents that no member of the board of directors of the CEDC or member
of the governing body of the City of Canyon or any officer or employee of the City of
Canyon or CEDC will be compensated in any manner with respect to directly or indirectly
bringing the parties together for the purpose of this agreement or participation in the
negotiation or formation of this agreement. No finder’s fee or other origination fee of any
type will be paid or will become payable to any officer or employee of the City of Canyon,
member of the governing body of the City of Canyon, or the governing body of the CEDC
with regard to the formation or performance of this agreement.

23.

All notices from one party to the other party required or permitted by this agreement shall
be delivered personally or sent by certified mail postage prepaid addressed to the party at
the address shown on the signature page. All notices shall be deemed given on the date so
delivered or deposited in the mail unless otherwise provided. Either party may change its
address by sending written notice of such change to the other party in the manner provided
by this agreement.

24.

All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements of the Second Party pertaining
to the transaction contemplated by this agreement shall survive the closing and shall
constitute continuing obligations.

Effective Date: _____________________________

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

By: ___________________________________
Larry Don Lee, President/Chairman
Address: 1604 4th Ave, Ste 21
Canyon, Texas 79015
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ALL WHO WANDER, LLC

By: ___________________________________
William Lawrence Gaydosh
Managing Member
Address for Notice:
c/o Justin Richardson
1420 4th Ave Ste 33
Canyon, Texas 79015
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AGENDA

REGARDING ITEM 9

To:

Joe Price, City Manager

From:

Evelyn Ecker, Executive Director, CEDC

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

First Reading of Resolution No. 06-2020 To Consider a Funding Agreement
Between the Canyon Economic Development Corporation and Bean & Burr
Coffee Lab., LLC. Relating To The New Business To Be Established in
Canyon, Texas.

Bean & Burr Coffee Lab, dba Journey Coffee are opening a community coffee shop at the
intersection of 4th Avenue and Russell Long Blvd., across from the WTAMU campus. With a
drive-through window, regular educational and entertainment events, they intend to serve the
needs of the Canyon area residents, WTAMU students, and the growing number of local
tourist.
The owners’ have selected the location for several reasons: the ability for drive-through
business and helping to contribute to the growth of the east side of Canyon.
The owners of the new business are investing approximately $240,000 for start-up cost,
which includes the build out of the space as well as equipment.
The new business will create six to eight new jobs in Canyon.
The funding for this project has been capped at $ 70,600 and includes Job Incentives and
Direct Financial Assistance.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
No recommendation since this is the first reading. Second and final reading will be April
20, 2020.

City of Canyon

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2020
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF CANYON APPROVING A PROJECT
FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEAN & BURR
COFFEE LAB, LLC AND CANYON ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION RELATING TO
THE NEW BUSINESS TO BE ESTABLISHED IN
CANYON, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, on MARCH 12, 2020 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation (“CEDC”)
conducted a public hearing regarding the use of sales and use tax revenues collected pursuant to
the Development Corporation Act of 1979, TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE CHAPTERS 501-505, (“the Act”)
to consider a funding agreement the primary purpose of which is the developing, stabilizing,
diversifying, and expanding the economy through the retention, recruitment, and expansion, of
employment opportunities of the citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area and to enhance the
quality of life of the citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area; and,
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Canyon, Texas, finds it to be in the public interest
for CEDC to execute a Project Funding Agreement between the CEDC and Bean & Burr Coffee
Lab, LLC., an entity qualified to do business in Texas, on the terms and conditions set forth in the
Project Funding Agreement approved by the CEDC board and presented to the City Commission
for consideration and approval.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF CANYON, TEXAS:
That the Project Funding Agreement by and between CEDC and Bean & Burr Coffee Lab, LLC
be, and it is hereby approved, and the sales tax revenue collected pursuant to “the Act” by CEDC
may be used for the primary purpose of financial assistance for developing and expansion of new
business. The sales tax revenue referred to in this Resolution shall be the revenue on deposit in
Sales Tax Improvement Fund (Fund 40) for direct costs related to the project.
INTRODUCED at the First Reading on the 6th of April, 2020, and Adopted on the Second Reading
on the 20th of April, 2020.

GARY HINDERS, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Gretchen Mercer, City Clerk

RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY – BEAN & BURR COFFEE LAB, LLC

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
PROJECT FUNDING AGREEMENT
BEAN & BURR COFFEE LAB, LLC
This agreement is made by and between the CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (“CEDC”), a Texas non-profit corporation duly organized and existing pursuant
to the TEXAS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION ACT and BEAN & BURR COFFEE LAB, LLC, a
Texas Limited Liability Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Second Party.”)
1.

The purpose of this agreement is to facilitate the proper use of funds held and administered
by the CEDC, a tax supported non-profit corporation whose primary income is from sales
tax collected within the City of Canyon and dedicated exclusively to economic
development. The sales tax supporting CEDC is authorized as a local option under Chapter
504 and 505 TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, formerly TEX. REV. CIV. STAT. ART. 5190.6 §4B, the
primary purpose of which is the developing, stabilizing, diversifying, and expanding the
economy through the retention, recruitment, expansion and employment opportunities of
the citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area and to enhance the quality of life of the
citizens of Canyon and the surrounding area.

2.

The project and performance requirements to be implemented by means of this agreement
are described as follows:
a.

Second Party shall establish a business to be known as “Journey Coffee” in leased
retail space at 4th Avenue and 38th Street in Canyon, Texas.

b.

Second Party shall lease the retail space referred to in Paragraph 2(a) above at
Second Party’s expense. No leasehold assistance payments are to be paid by
CEDC.

c.

Second Party shall acquire and either lease or purchase all such equipment,
leasehold improvements and trade fixtures at Second Party’s expense as may be
necessary to the operation of the business described in Paragraph 2(a) above.

d.

Second Party will remain in business in Canyon for a period of five (5) years from
the date of initial funding by CEDC engaged in a retail business which collects and
remits sales tax on retail sales to the public. Retail business means a business that
collects sales tax and remits sales tax as defined in the North American Industry
Classification System (NAICS) which is incorporated by reference.

e.

Should any part of the financial incentives provided by CEDC be used by
Second Party to purchase furniture, fixtures or equipment, CEDC shall have
a lien pursuant to Chapter 9 of the TEXAS BUSINESS AND COMMERCE CODE on
all such property which shall attach at the moment of purchase and shall
extend to proceeds and after acquired property. CEDC as secured party may
at any time file a financing statement to perfect its security interest in the
collateral to secure the obligations of Second Party hereunder.
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3.

CEDC will provide the following incentives if Second Party is not in default hereunder as
follows:
a.

New business development financial incentives in a total sum which will not exceed
$70,600.

b.

The direct financial incentives referred to in Paragraph 3(a) will begin on the first
full quarter following opening of the business and will include payroll assistance
equal to 10% of total wages reported to the Texas Workforce Commission on the
employer’s quarterly report for a period not to exceed 3 years and in an amount not
to exceed $44,000, whichever shall first occur.

c.

Financial business development incentives to be paid in equal quarterly
installments as follows:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

d.

Year one - $13,300
Year two - $7,980
Year three - $5,320
The total business development incentives shall not exceed $26,600.

All other terms and provisions of this agreement notwithstanding, the obligations
of the parties hereto are expressly made contingent upon the following:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

approval of the financial incentives by the CEDC Board;
approval of the financial incentives by the Canyon City Commission;
compliance with the requirements of the TEXAS DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ACT; and,
provided that all obligations of CEDC hereunder shall terminate if Second
Party fails to qualify for funding of financial incentives within 12 months
from the date this agreement is signed by Second Party (the effective date).

4.

The failure of Second Party to fully and timely comply with any performance requirement
shall be an act of default by Second Party which shall entitle the CEDC to suspend further
funding and, at its option, to terminate this agreement by written notice delivered pursuant
to paragraph 9. In such event, all financial incentives provided by CEDC to Second Party
shall be repaid to CEDC upon demand.

5.

Second Party agrees to undertake the following actions in order to accomplish the project:
a.

Comply at all times with the requirements of paragraph 2 of this agreement during
the term of this agreement.

b.

Permit an audit by the CEDC of the books and financial records of Second Party,
to determine whether Second Party is in compliance with this agreement.
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c.
6.

Permit periodic inspection of improvements to the property described in Paragraph
2 if any part of the funding or financial incentives is used to improve real property.

Second Party makes the following covenants and warranties to the CEDC and agrees to
timely and fully perform the following obligations and duties:
a.

Any false or substantially misleading statement contained herein or the failure of
Second Party to comply and fully perform as required in this agreement shall be an
act of default by Second Party. Failure to comply with any covenant or warranties
shall constitute an act of default and entitle the CEDC to suspend further funding
and at its option to terminate this agreement by written notice in accordance with
paragraph 9 below.

b.

Second Party is authorized to do business in Texas, is in good standing in the State
of Texas and shall remain in good standing in the State of Texas during the term of
this agreement.

c.

The execution of this agreement has been duly authorized by the governing body
of Second Party and all necessary corporate approvals have been obtained. Second
Party’s designated agent or officer executing this agreement is duly authorized and
empowered to execute this agreement and bind Second Party to the covenants,
warranties and other terms of this agreement. Second Party’s execution of this
agreement and the performance thereof is not contrary to any law, rule, regulation,
or provisions of Second Party’s organizational documents or any contract,
instrument, or agreement to which Second Party is a party or by which it may be
bound at the time this agreement is executed. The necessary authority for the agent
whose signature that appears below is evidenced by a resolution or certificate
furnished to CEDC or attached to this agreement.

d.

No litigation or governmental proceeding is pending or to the knowledge of Second
Party is contemplated or threatened against Second Party or affecting its operations
or business that may result in any material or adverse change in Second Party’s
business, properties, or operations. To Second Party’s knowledge, no additional
consent, approval, or authorization of a governmental entity or other authority is
required in connection with the execution and performance of this agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby.

e.

To Second Party’s knowledge no certificate or statement delivered by Second Party
to CEDC in connection with this agreement or any transaction contemplated by this
agreement contains any untrue statement or fails to state the facts necessary to keep
the statements contained therein from being misleading or false.

f.

There are no bankruptcy proceedings or other legal proceedings currently pending
or contemplated affecting the Second Party. The Second Party has not been
informed of any intent to initiate involuntary bankruptcy proceedings against
Second Party.
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7.

8.

g.

To its knowledge Second Party has acquired and maintained all necessary rights,
licenses, permits, and authority to carry on its business in Texas and to perform the
terms of this agreement and will continue to use its best efforts to maintain all
necessary rights, licenses, and permits in current status and good standing.

h.

The funds provided by CEDC shall be utilized solely for the purpose of the project
as stated in this agreement and within the scope of the project as stated in this
agreement and for no other purpose.

i.

Second Party shall pay all taxes and assessments due and owing to all taxing
authorities having jurisdiction over Second Party’s property and business
operations. In addition, Second Party shall timely pay all employment, income,
franchise, and other taxes due and owing by Second Party to all local, state, and
federal entities.

j.

Second Party shall complete the project required by this agreement and shall
provide the necessary staff and employees for the completion and performance of
this agreement.

k.

Second Party shall timely and fully perform and comply with all terms and
conditions of this agreement.

l.

Upon written request of CEDC Second Party shall notify CEDC in writing of
substantial changes in the management of Second Party within seven (7) days.
Substantial changes shall mean changes in executive officers, board members, or
managers.

m.

The Second Party agrees that with regard to all activities arising out of this
agreement, the Second Party shall fully comply with all civil rights acts and
specifically will not discriminate against any person upon the basis of race, color,
national origin, gender, or by reason of being disabled.

The CEDC, under the following circumstances and at the sole discretion of its board of
directors, may suspend the obligations under this agreement or may terminate this
agreement without liability to the CEDC upon:
a.

The filing of bankruptcy proceedings or the appointment of a receiver of Second
Party or any part of its assets or property and failure of such bankruptcy or
receivership to be discharged within sixty (60) days of filing.

b.

The adjudication of Second Party as a bankrupt.

c.

A change in ownership of Second Party which constitutes a material change in the
nature of Second Party’s business and operations.

Second Party agrees to the following reports and monetary requirements in connection with
the project:
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a.

Second Party shall provide periodic reports as requested by the CEDC.

b.

During normal business hours, Second Party shall allow a representative of the
CEDC reasonable access to its books and records to verify compliance with this
agreement. CEDC agrees to maintain the confidentiality of such records.
Information shall be used only for the purpose of administering the funding
provided by CEDC pursuant to this agreement and for no other purpose; provided
however, CEDC may, if required by legal process or at the direction of the office
of the Attorney General provide such documentation to a third party as is required
by the Attorney General or pursuant to such legal process.

9.

Should Second Party fail to timely, fully, and completely comply with any one or more of
the requirements, obligations, duties, terms, and conditions or warranties of this agreement
such failure shall constitute an act of default by Second Party and, if not fully and
completely cured within 60 days after written notice by CEDC to Second Party, the CEDC
may terminate this agreement and pursue any legal remedies existing under the law;
provided however, that Second Party’s liability under this agreement shall be limited to the
immediate return by Second Party of all funds or other economic incentives provided by
the CEDC and any consideration previously paid to Second Party by the CEDC. The rate
of interest on all funds paid by the CEDC to Second Party subject to refund shall be 6%
per annum from the date of default. In the event CEDC should prevail in any litigation to
recover funds pursuant to this paragraph, the CEDC shall, in addition to all other damages
provided by this paragraph, be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses
of litigation.

10.

In the event of unforeseeable delays, in the performance of this agreement by Second Party,
or force majeure, and upon a reasonable showing by Second Party that it has immediately
and in good faith commenced and is diligently and continuously pursuing the correction,
removal, or abatement of such delays by using its best efforts, CEDC may consent and
excuse any such delay. The failure by Second Party to continuously and diligently pursue
compliance shall constitute an act of default.

11.

Any delay by the CEDC in providing notice of default to Second Party, shall in no event
be deemed or constitute a waiver of such default by CEDC or waiver of any of its rights
and remedies available under this agreement or at law or in equity.

12.

Any waiver provided by CEDC to Second Party of an act of default shall not be deemed to
constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any other existing or future act of default by
Second Party even if the act or default is of the same or a similar nature.

13.

Second Party specifically agrees that CEDC shall only be liable to Second Party for the
amount of money actually budgeted and committed to the project described in this
agreement. CEDC shall not be liable or held responsible for any other direct or indirect
costs, attorney’s fees, court costs, actual or consequential damages, direct or indirect, for
any act of default by CEDC under the terms of this agreement. It is further stipulated and
agreed that CEDC shall only be required to pay the amount of the project cost out of its
sales tax revenues held and administered pursuant to the Development Corporation Act for
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the fiscal year in which the funding under this agreement is due together with
unencumbered funds then on hand and from no other source. It is specifically agreed
however, that in the event actual total sales tax revenues collected by CEDC for any year
during which this agreement is to be performed should be less than the total amount of all
grants to all contracting parties for that year, then in that event, CEDC shall fund projects
in the order the grants were awarded after payment of CEDC’s usual administrative cost
and expenses. All contracting parties shall receive only their share of the available sales
tax revenue for that year, less CEDC’s customary and usual administrative costs and
expenses and CEDC shall not be liable to any contracting party for any deficiency for that
time or in the future. In the event of such revenue shortfall, CEDC will provide written
notice to all contracting parties affected by the revenue shortfall along with such
documentation as will allow the contracting party to ascertain their share of the funding to
be provided.
14.

This agreement incorporates the entire agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes any
oral or written previous and contemporaneous agreements between the parties relating to
the matters covered by this agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, this
agreement cannot be modified or amended without a written agreement of the parties.

15.

No term or provision of this agreement or an act of the CEDC in the performance of this
agreement shall be construed as making or constituting Second Party or its employees, or
agents, partners of the CEDC or employees of the CEDC. This contract shall not benefit
any third party not a direct party to this agreement.

16.

The termination of this agreement as provided herein may be upon mutual agreement of
the parties or pursuant to the provisions hereof relating to default. The termination of this
agreement either by mutual agreement or by notice served by the CEDC shall extinguish
all rights, duties, and obligations of the CEDC and Second Party except as provided herein.

17.

This agreement may be executed in a number of identical counterparts each of which shall
be deemed an original upon execution and shall constitute the same instrument.

18.

This agreement is made pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas and shall be governed
and interpreted under the laws of the State of Texas without regard to any conflict of laws
provision. Venue in any litigation arising out of the execution or performance of this
agreement shall be in the court of appropriate jurisdiction in Randall County, Texas and in
no other Venue. Second Party, by signing this agreement, consents to and waives any
objections to in personam jurisdiction in Randall County, Texas.

19.

In the event one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement should, for any
reason, be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality,
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this agreement. This agreement
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had not been
contained herein.

20.

This agreement is subject to all legal requirements contained in the Municipal Charter of
the City of Canyon and Code and Ordinances of the City of Canyon and all other applicable
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state and federal laws and regulations. Second Party agrees that, in compliance with this
agreement, it will promptly comply with all applicable laws, regulations, orders, and rules
of the state, city, and other governmental entities.
21.

This agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors, and (where
permitted) assigns. This agreement may not be assigned by either party without the specific
prior written consent of the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
conditioned. Provided however, that in the event Second Party transfers all or substantially
all its assets to another entity or merges with another entity to the extent that the underlying
purpose of this agreement cannot, in the sole discretion of the CEDC’s board of directors,
be accomplished, the CEDC shall have the option to suspend its performance under this
agreement or terminate this agreement.

22.

Second Party represents that no member of the board of directors of the CEDC or member
of the governing body of the City of Canyon or any officer or employee of the City of
Canyon or CEDC will be compensated in any manner with respect to directly or indirectly
bringing the parties together for the purpose of this agreement or participation in the
negotiation or formation of this agreement. No finder’s fee or other origination fee of any
type will be paid or will become payable to any officer or employee of the City of Canyon,
member of the governing body of the City of Canyon, or the governing body of the CEDC
with regard to the formation or performance of this agreement.

23.

All notices from one party to the other party required or permitted by this agreement shall
be delivered personally or sent by certified mail postage prepaid addressed to the party at
the address shown on the signature page. All notices shall be deemed given on the date so
delivered or deposited in the mail unless otherwise provided. Either party may change its
address by sending written notice of such change to the other party in the manner provided
by this agreement.

24.

All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements of the Second Party pertaining
to the transaction contemplated by this agreement shall survive the closing and shall
constitute continuing obligations.

Effective Date: _____________________________
CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

By: _________________________________

Second Party:
BEAN & BURR COFFEE LAB, LLC

By: ___________________________________

Don Lee
President/Chairman
1605 4th Ave
Canyon, TX 79015
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Managing Member
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AGENDA

REGARDING ITEM 10

To:

Joe Price, City Manager

From:

Evelyn Ecker, Executive Director, CEDC

Date:

April 2, 2020

Re:

Canyon Economic Development Corporation Audit for YE 2019,

The Canyon Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) audit for 2019 is enclosed in your
information packet, with a summary of the report. John Merriss CPA, with Doshier, Pickens
& Francis LLC. provided the summary.
The audit was presented to the CEDC at the regular meeting of the board on March 12, 2020.
The board reviewed and voted to accept the audit as presented.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
I move to (approve / not approve) the 2019 Audit for the Canyon Economic Development
Corporation for Year Ended September 30, 2019.

City of Canyon

Canyon Economic Development Corporation
Canyon City Council meeting, Monday – April 6, 2020

1. The Independent Auditors’ Report on DPF letterhead states in the last paragraph on the
1st page under “Opinions” that in our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all
material respects, the financial position of the business-type activities as of September 30,
2019 and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. This is
the report and the opinion that you strive for with no exceptions.
2. The Statement of Net Position is first on page 3. This statement reports assets, liabilities
and then net position or equity. Some of the key assets reported here include Cash and
Cash Equivalents totaling $796,324, Investments (i.e. property held for re-sale and
Amarillo Area Foundation Funds) totaling $440,913, Due from Primary Government (i.e.
sales tax receipts that the State pays to the City first) totaling $133,040. As of September
30, 2019 the EDC has $1,285,718 in unrestricted net position to meet future obligations
as well as fund current commitments.
3. Page 4 presents the Statement of Revenues and Expenses, on a full accrual basis. The
significant changes here are the fact that Sales Tax revenue increased approximately
$24,000 from the prior year. The EDC has no control over this number it is dependent
upon the local economy. Also, total expenses of $464,399 have decreased approximately
$66,500 (or 12.5%) from the previous year. This was caused by a decrease in Economic
Development Projects of $80,000 netted against an increase in Salaries and Benefits of
$11,500. With these changes the EDC still showed a positive change in Net Position (or
equity) of $337,286, which is up approximately $92,500 from 2018.
4. The notes to the financial statements follow on pages 6 thru 14. Page 13, Note 9 provides
a schedule of what Economic Development Projects were funded during the current year.
Note 10 details out the various commitments of the EDC and what the funding status of
each commitment is, so that the readers of the financials know how much of the EDC’s
unrestricted net position is already committed to ongoing projects.
5. The last report in the binder, page 15, is the Report on Internal Controls. We were not
engaged to assess the EDC’s internal control structure, however we do have to report if
we note any significant deficiencies. We are pleased to state that no such deficiencies
were noted during the current year.
6. Thanks to Evelyn and Kirstie for their excellent work this year, and every year, in
gathering the documents that we need to conduct the audit, and for doing such an
amazing job in keeping the records of the EDC organized and accurate.

Canyon Economic
Development Corporation
A Component Unit of
The City of Canyon, Texas
For the Year Ended
September 30, 2019
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Canyon, Texas
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Canyon Economic
Development Corporation, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Canyon Economic Development Corporation’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the business-type activities of the Canyon Economic Development Corporation, as of September 30, 2019, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Required Supplementary Information
The Corporation has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented by the Government Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. The independent auditors’ opinion is not affected by the omission of the
MD&A.
Other Matters
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 21, 2020, on our
consideration of the Canyon Economic Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Canyon Economic
Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Canyon Economic Development
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

DOSHIER, PICKENS & FRANCIS, LLC
February 21, 2020
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Due from primary government (sales tax)
Prepaid insurance

$

Total current assets

796,324
440,913
133,040
5,885
1,376,162

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net
Security deposit

262,931
1,007

Total noncurrent assets

263,938

Total assets

1,640,100
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Due to primary government
Current portion of long-term debt

12,566
15,777

Total current liabilities

28,343

Non-current Liabilities:
Non-current portion of long-term debt

63,108

Total liabilities

91,451
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

262,931
1,285,718

Total net position

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,548,649

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales tax
Rental income
Miscellaneous

$

788,665
6,000
1,607

Total operating revenues

796,272

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Economic development projects
Salaries and benefits
Depreciation
Advertising
Office expense
Property taxes
Travel
Office supplies
Rent
Professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Insurance
Miscellaneous

179,736
148,376
8,712
77,739
14,733
213
1,543
3,569
14,010
6,925
44
3,490
5,150
159

Total operating expenses

464,399

OPERATING INCOME

331,873

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES:
Investment earnings

5,413

Total non-operating revenues and expenses

5,413

CHANGE IN NET POSTION

337,286

NET POSITION - BEGINNING

1,211,363

NET POSITION - ENDING

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from sales taxes
Receipts from other operating revenues
Payments to suppliers and service providers
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits
Payments for economic development projects

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

788,946
7,607
(127,276)
(148,376)
(179,736)
341,165

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on long term debt

(15,777)

Net cash used by capital financing activities

(15,777)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments
Purchase of investments

5,413
(3,909)

Net cash provided by investing activities

1,504

NET INCREASE IN CASH

326,892

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

469,432

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash flows provided for operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Due from primary government (sales tax)
Prepaid insurance
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Due to primary government
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

796,324

$

331,873

8,712
281
(719)
1,018
$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
-5-

341,165

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. The Financial Reporting Entity
The Canyon Economic Development Corporation (EDC) is a quasi-governmental organization created in 2004 under
provisions of the Industrial Development Corporation Act of the State of Texas. The EDC is financed by the proceeds
of a ½ percent economic development sales tax provided by state statute subject to local option, which was approved
by the citizens of the City of Canyon (City). The purpose of the EDC is to promote and develop industrial,
manufacturing and other economic enterprises in order to eliminate unemployment and to enhance the public welfare
of, for, and on behalf of citizens of the City.
The EDC is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors appointed by the City Council, and the City serves as
fiscal agent for the EDC, providing such services as investment and management information services. The EDC’s
annual operating budget, as well as projects undertaken by it are subject to approval by the City Council. Because of
this oversight responsibility, the EDC is considered to be a component unit of the City, and in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Section 2100 of the Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards, its financial statements are included in the City’s annual financial report as a
discretely-presented component unit.
B. Basic Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, and statement of cash flows. The EDC accounts for all of its operations in one proprietary fund. The
activities of the EDC are supported mainly by sales tax revenues.
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The proprietary fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
the related cash flows.
Revenues are classified as operating revenues and non-operating revenues. Operating revenues include sales tax
income. Non-operating revenues include investment earnings.
D. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The EDC’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and deposits within public
fund investment pools. Statutes authorize the EDC to keep funds in demand deposits, time deposits, or securities of
the United States. The EDC’s custodial banks are required to pledge for the purpose of securing EDC funds,
securities of the following kind, in an amount equal to the amount of such EDC funds: bonds and notes of the United
States, securities of indebtedness of the United States, bonds of the State of Texas, or of any county, city, or
independent school district, and various other bonds as described in Texas Statutes.
The EDC is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act (“Act”), to adopt, and
publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written, primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidity,
address investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the quality and capability of investment management, and
include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the investing entity’s funds may be invested, and the
maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.
Continued
-6-

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continuation
E. Receivables and Payables
Receivables consist of sales tax collections due from the State, through the City of Canyon, interest earned on
investments and other revenues earned at year end. There is no allowance for uncollectible amounts as all receivables
are deemed collectible.
Payables consist of vendor obligations for goods and services as well as funds payable to others when the criteria for
their release have been met.
F. Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in
the financial statements.
G. Capital Assets
Capital assets including buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment, and website designs, are
reported in the statement of net position. According to the EDC’s capitalization policy, capital assets are defined as
individual assets (or systems of assets) having a cost of more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated lives:

Buildings
Leashold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Website development

39 years
5 years
3 - 10 years
3 years

H. Net Position
In the proprietary fund financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three categories.
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and
adding back unspent proceeds.
Restricted Net Position – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of
other governments, enabling legislation, or constitutional provisions.
Unrestricted Net Position – This amount includes all net positions that do not meet the definition of “net investment in
capital assets” or “restricted net position.”

Continued
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CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continuation
I.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Information:
The EDC follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:
1. The proposed budget is prepared by the Executive Director and presented to the Board.
2. The Board will approve the budget and provide it to the City Commissioners prior to August 1.
3. The budget is adopted after approval of the City Commissioners.
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CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Following is a reconciliation of the EDC’s deposit and investment balances as of September 30, 2019:

Deposit balances consist of:
Cost and
Fair Value
Bank deposits

$

796,324

Investments consist of:
Cost and
Fair Value
Certificates of deposit (interest rates at 2.12%)

$

Amarillo Area Foundation, custodian for Canyon
Community Fund; marketable securities (fair market value)

Weighted
Average
Maturity (Days)

180,489

182

15,914

Real estate, purchased for project development (cost,
which approximates fair value)

244,510
$

440,913

Custodial credit risk – deposits. As of September 30, 2019 the carrying amount of the EDC’s deposits (cash, interest
bearing accounts and certificates of deposit) with financial institutions were collateralized through the City of Canyon’s
depository contract with the financial institution and with FDIC coverage.
Custodial credit risk – investments. As of September 30, 2019 the carrying amount of the EDC’s deposits (cash,
interest bearing accounts and certificates of deposit) with financial institutions were collateralized through the City of
Canyon’s depository contract with the financial institution and with FDIC coverage.
The depository makes no distinction between the EDC and the City of Canyon when pledging securities.
Interest rate risk is the risk that adverse changes in interest rates will result in an adverse effect on the fair value of an
investment. The EDC manages its exposure to interest rate risk by limiting the weighted average maturity of its
investment portfolio to three years or less.
Credit risk is the risk that an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. State law and
City of Canyon policy limit investments in local government pools to those rated to no lower than AAA or an equivalent
rating by at least on nationally recognized rating service.

Continued
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CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 3 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – Continuation
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single
issuer. As of September 30, 2019, 100% of the EDC’s carrying value of cash and investments in certificates of deposit
were deposited with the depository bank of the City of Canyon and therefore were included in the City’s collateralized as
described above.
Investment Accounting Policy
The EDC’s general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning investment
contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the
impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by the other factors, it is reported at fair value. The term “short-term”
refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term “nonparticipating”
means that the investments value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit
are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts. The EDC’s only investments outside of the
Amarillo Area Foundation are certificates of deposit which are carried as part of deposits. The EDC’s policy is that all
investments be reported in the financial statements at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received
to sell an asset in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
NOTE 4 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The EDC has two employees who were hired by the EDC’s Board of Directors but under the direct supervision of the City
Manager with City Council approval. Because the City serves as fiscal agent for the EDC and because the EDC is a
component unit of the City, the EDC’s employees are provided the same benefits as are available to the City’s employees.
Following is a summary of disclosures related to employee benefits:
A. Compensated Absences
Full-time City employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment.
Employees must complete their six month orientation period prior to taking any leave. Vacation days are earned at a
rate of 10 days per year for one to five years of service, 12 days for six to ten years of service, 15 days for eleven to
twenty years of service, and 20 days for more than twenty years of service. Compensated absences for EDC
employees are accounted for with the City of Canyon.
Compensated absences for sick leave accrue at a rate of eight hours per month and may be accumulated for a
maximum of ninety days. Employees who begin a year of service with ninety days of accumulated sick leave are
allowed to receive reimbursement for unused sick leave at their regular rate on a specific payout schedule. Employees
with at least eight years of service are eligible to receive sick leave termination pay for one third of their total
accumulated sick leave up to thirty days. Sick leave for EDC employees is accounted for with the City of Canyon.

Continued
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CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 4 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continuation
B. Pension Plan
The City provides pension benefits for all its full time employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory, defined
contribution plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. It is the opinion of the TMRS management that the plans in TMRS are substantially
defined contribution plans. Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 10 or more years of service or with 20
years of service regardless of age. The plan also provides death and disability benefits. A member is vested after 5
years, but the member is not entitled to the employer-financed monetary credits, even if the member was vested. The
plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes
governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes. The contribution rate for employees is 7%,
and the employer matching percent is currently 14%, both as adopted by the governing body of the City. Pension
costs are billed to the EDC each month.
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances
Business-type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment
Website

$

Total capital assets, being
depreciated

276,557
3,941
39,576
13,631

Increases

$

-

Ending
Balances

Decreases

$

-

$

276,557
3,941
39,576
13,631

333,705

-

-

333,705

(12,314)
(3,612)
(32,504)
(13,632)

(7,091)
(329)
(1,292)
-

-

(19,405)
(3,941)
(33,796)
(13,632)

Total accumulated depreciation

(62,062)

(8,712)

-

(70,774)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

271,643

(8,712)

-

262,931

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment
Website

Business-type activities capital
assets, net

$

271,643

$

(8,712)

$

-

$

The only function of the EDC is economic development and all depreciation was charged to that function.
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262,931

CANYON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 6 - LEASES
The EDC is obligated under a lease with CCK Properties for office space. Under the terms of the lease, the EDC has
agreed to pay a monthly rate of $1,159. For the year ended September 30, 2019, $13,907 of rental expense is reported on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The lease terminated on September 30, 2019 and
converted to a month-to-month obligation. There are no minimum future lease payments.
NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
During the year ended September 30, 2015, the EDC obtained a real estate lien note from the City of Canyon, Texas in the
amount of $157,770 with 0% interest per annum and a maturity date of March 2, 2025. The principal amount is payable in
ten equal annual installments of $15,777.

Beginning
Balance
Business-type activities:
Note Payable
Business-type activity
long-term liabilities

Additions

Ending
Balance

Reductions

Due Within
One Year

$

94,662

$

-

$

(15,777)

$

78,885

$

15,777

$

94,662

$

-

$

(15,777)

$

78,885

$

15,777

The annual debt service requirement on long-term liabilities outstanding as of September 30, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
September 30
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

$

$

Total
15,777
15,777
15,777
15,777
15,777
78,885

Note Payable
Highway 60
$
15,777
15,777
15,777
15,777
15,777
$

78,885

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. For the past several years the EDC has obtained coverage from the
Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool through policies issued to the City of Canyon. Participation in the
Risk Pool serves to insure against the risk of loss thereby transferring that risk to the Risk Pool. There were no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded coverage for the
current year or the past three fiscal years.

Continued
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NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT – Continuation
Each fund (Workers’ Compensation and Property-Liability) of the Risk Pool consists of an unincorporated association of
political subdivisions of the State of Texas (hereinafter called Employer Members), which are authorized under Chapter
504, Labor Code, and Chapter 791, Government Code, to be self-insurers and enter into interlocal agreements with other
political subdivisions to extend workers’ compensation benefits and liability protection for themselves, their officers and
employees while acting in their official capacities, as well as municipal property coverage. Each Employer Member of
each Fund shall adopt rules, regulations and bylaws promulgated by the Board of Trustees for each Fund. The funds are
not intended to operate as an insurance company, but rather are intended to be the contracting mechanism by which each
Employer Member provides self-insurance extending workers’ compensation benefits to its employees, provides liability
coverage for itself and its employees in their official capacities under the limitations provided by law, and provides
municipal property coverage.
Each of the Employer Members is required to pay each Fund the contributions as provided by the contract between the
funds and the Employer Members. All contributions from the Employer Members are combined for the payment of
claims, purchases of reinsurance, and administrative expenses of the Fund. Employer Members are not subject to any
additional contribution assessments above their required annual contributions. For the proper protection of the Funds,
each Employer Member shall be required to implement such reasonable loss control recommendations and take such
safety precautions as may be required by the Fund representative.
NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
Economic Development Project expenses for the year ended September 30, 2019are as follows:

2015 Lone Star Milk Producers
2017 Panhandle Tap Room
2017 Ruthette's Bridal Shop
2017 Joe Taco Canyon Project
2018 Barrel & Pie
2018 U.S. Cleaners
2019 79 Salt

$

85,000
13,800
7,608
50,000
10,000
8,328
5,000

Total Economic Development Projects

$

179,736

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed to Lone
Star Milk Producers funding an amount not to exceed $850,000 for job incentives to be paid in ten annual installments of
$85,000. This funding is based on meeting a minimum employment threshold. As of September 30, 2019 $170,000 of
this commitment has been funded, leaving a remaining commitment of $680,000.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed to Furman
Family Partnership, LLP (Depot Project) funding an amount not to exceed $250,000 for the construction of 7,600 square
feet of leasable retail space, to be paid in five annual installments of $50,000. As of September 30, 2019 none of this
commitment has been funded.
Continued
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NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS – Continuation
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $46,000 to Panhandle Taproom, LLC to provide a partial lease reimbursement for three years. Under the
agreement the first twelve months will be reimbursed at 50%, or an amount not to exceed $23,000, year two will be
reimbursed at 30%, or an amount not to exceed $13,800, and year three will be reimbursed at 20%, or an amount not to
exceed $9,200. As of September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment is $9,200.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $21,600 to Ruthette’s Bridal Shop to provide a partial lease reimbursement for three years. Under the
agreement the first twelve months will be reimbursed at 50%, or an amount not to exceed $10,800, year two will be
reimbursed at 30%, or an amount not to exceed $6,480, and year three will be reimbursed at 20%, or an amount not to
exceed $4,320. As of September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment is $3,192.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $220,000 to Joe Taco Canyon, LLC to provide cash incentives to assist in the opening of a business. Under
the agreement $50,000 will be remitted upon issuance of construction permits, $50,000 upon issuance of the certificate of
occupancy, $50,000 on the first anniversary of opening to the public, and $70,000 on the second anniversary of opening to
the public. As of September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment is $70,000.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $95,000 to Barrel and Pie (Fox & Owl, LLC) to provide funding and financial incentives for two years.
Under the agreement the first payment of $35,000 for the purchase of equipment will be disbursed on the first day the
business is open to the public. The second payment of $35,000 will be made on the one year anniversary of opening,
contingent upon the business reaching the goal of Gross Sales Revenue as projected in the Business Plan. The final
payment of $25,000 will be disbursed upon documentation of the creation of four (4) upper management positions. As of
September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment is $35,000.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $18,666 to U.S. Cleaners to provide a lease subsidy for three years. Under the agreement the first year will
be reimbursed at an amount not to exceed $9,228, year two will be reimbursed at an amount not to exceed $5,627, and
year three will be reimbursed at an amount not to exceed $3,811. As of September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment
is $8,130.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $30,000 to 79 Salt to provide a partial lease reimbursement for three years. Under the agreement the first
twelve months will be reimbursed at 50%, or an amount not to exceed $15,00, year two will be reimbursed at 30%, or an
amount not to exceed $9,000, and year three will be reimbursed at 20%, or an amount not to exceed $6,000. As of
September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment is $25,000.
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 the Canyon Economic Development Corporation committed an amount
not to exceed $320,000 to O’Neal Enterprises, LLC to provide cash incentives to assist in the opening of a business.
Under the agreement $90,000 will be remitted upon issuance of construction permits, $75,000 will be remitted when the
project reaches 50% completion, $77,500 upon issuance of the certificate of occupancy, and $77,500 on the first
anniversary of issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy. As of September 30, 2019, the remaining commitment is
$320,000.
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COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Board of Directors
Canyon Economic Development Corporation
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Canyon Economic Development
Corporation, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Canyon Economic Development Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated February 21, 2020.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Canyon Economic Development
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Canyon Economic Development Corporation’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Canyon Economic Development
Corporation’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Canyon Economic Development Corporation’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Canyon Economic Development Corporation
Page 2

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

DOSHIER, PICKENS & FRANCIS, LLC
February 21, 2020
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REGARDING ITEM 11

AGENDA

To:

Joe Price, City Manager

From:

Joel Wright, Director of Finance

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on February 29, 2020 Finance Report
by Finance Director Joel Wright

I have prepared a financial statements for the major governmental and enterprise funds of the
City of Canyon as follows:
Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet and Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual:
• General Fund
• Debt Service Fund
Enterprise Funds - Balance Sheet and Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Net Position – Budget and Actual
• Water & Sewer Fund
• Golf Fund
Key points of the financial statements (government-wide) as of and for the five months ended
February 29, 2020 are:
•

•

•

•

•

General Fund: Total assets = $6,380,890
Fund balance – unassigned = $5,656,468
Total revenues = $5,608,567, $21,366 under budget
Total expenditures - $4,118,161, $558,956 under budget
Net change in fund balance = $1,490,406 increase
Debt Service Fund: Total assets = $312,593 (majority cash)
Property taxes collected = $429,468
Debt service payments = $313,950 (2016 general obligation bonds)
Water & Sewer Fund: Total assets = $51,898,893
Unrestricted net position = $6,491,434
Total revenues = $5,362,153, $2,009,071 over budget
Total operating expenses= $2,073,453, $88,544 under budget
Golf Fund:
Total assets = $ 1,852,978
Unrestricted deficit = ($3,413,800)
Total revenues = $239,078, $208,830 under budget
Total operating expenses = $541,830, $57,147 under budget
Cash and Cash equivalents is $ 10,516,434

City of Canyon

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED MOTION
I move to approve/not approve the Finance Report for the City of Canyon as of and for the
Five Months Ended February 29, 2020.

City of Canyon

CITY OF CANYON
BALANCE SHEET
GENERAL FUND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

02/29/2020
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivables, net
Tax receivable, net
Due from other funds
Due from CEDC
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Payable to other governments
Accrued expenses
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid items
Restricted:
By enabling legislation for special projects
Assigned to:
Special projects
Unassigned

9/30/2019

2,812,856
637,048
21,252
2,498,047
12,566
399,121
-

2,119,717
709,272
21,252
2,102,173
12,566
399,121
11,486

6,380,890

5,375,587

124,893
135,441
50,546
7,624

227,718
479,159
89,106
7,624

318,504

803,607

161,147

161,147

-

11,486

36,887

36,887

207,884
5,656,468

207,884
4,154,576

Total fund balances

5,901,239

4,410,833

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

6,380,890

5,375,587

CITY OF CANYON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
For the Five Months Ended February 29, 2020
Budget
Actual
Five Months Five Months
Ended
Ended
02/29/2020
02/29/2020
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales tax
Franchise fees
Mixed beverage tax
Licenses and fees
Fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest earnings
Grants and donations
Other
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development
Sanitation
Debt service:
Principal & interest
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance

$ 2,679,320
1,040,000
383,333
12,500
41,875
106,292
272,238
1,063,958
5,417
-

$ 2,742,244
1,053,965
343,665
8,113
43,773
147,139
285,601
883,217
13,132
20,171

$

62,924
13,965
(39,668)
(4,387)
1,898
40,847
13,363
(180,741)
7,715
20,171

25,000

67,547

5,629,933

5,608,567

(21,366)

519,191
1,934,886
482,440
891,920
108,076
602,323

504,234
1,841,816
247,614
698,868
103,875
494,318

14,957
93,070
234,826
193,052
4,201
108,005

20,825
117,456
4,677,117

181,480
45,956
4,118,161

(160,655)
71,500
558,956

952,816

1,490,406

537,590

42,547

357,183

-

(357,183)

357,183

-

(357,183)

1,309,999

1,490,406

180,407

4,410,833
$ 5,720,832

4,410,833
$ 5,901,239

180,407

$

CITY OF CANYON
BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

02/29/2020
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Total assets

9/30/2019

312,251
342

196,681
342

312,593

197,023

LIABILITIES
Total liabilities
FUND BALANCES
Assigned to:
Debt service

-

-

312,593

197,023

Total fund balances

312,593

197,023

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

312,593

197,023

CITY OF CANYON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
For the Five Months Ended February 29, 2020
Budget
Actual
Five Months Five Months
Ended
Ended
02/29/2020
02/29/2020
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property taxes
Interest earnings

$

-

$

429,468
52

Variance

$

429,468
52

-

429,520

429,520

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

-

240,000
73,950

(240,000)
(73,950)

Total expenditures

-

313,950

(313,950)

-

115,570

115,570

Total revenues

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

197,023

197,023
$

197,023

$

312,593

$

115,570

CITY OF CANYON
BALANCE SHEET
WATER & SEWER FUND
ENTERPRISE FUND
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

02/29/2020
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash for construction
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental receivables
Inventories

$ 6,484,428
435,335
1,123,280
1,182,200
64,761
32,849

9/30/2019

$

2,415,831
727,858
1,121,700
1,369,249
71,726
33,300

9,322,853

5,739,664

5,054,012
6,379,014
340,099
12,232,783
3,239,153
35,528,840
(20,197,861)

5,054,012
6,003,275
340,099
12,232,783
3,239,153
35,528,840
(19,780,631)

Total noncurrent assets

42,576,040

42,617,531

Total assets

51,898,893

48,357,195

86,454
120,535
258,455
2,234

86,454
120,535
258,456
2,234

467,678

467,679

376,495
1,089
29,628
52,092
12,329
269,470

576,912
1,089
29,628
52,092
12,329
268,840

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Less accumulated depreciation

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred pension contributions
Deferred pension deficient earnings
Deferred OPEB contributions
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues
Customer deposits

CITY OF CANYON
BALANCE SHEET
WATER & SEWER FUND
ENTERPRISE FUND
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

02/29/2020
Compensated absences - current
Note payable - current
Certificates of obligation payable - current

9/30/2019

9,700
122,079
814,033

9,700
783,227

1,686,915

1,733,817

87,169
746,608
390,813
1,287,203

87,169
746,608
390,813
-

8,000,227

8,814,260

Total noncurrent liabilities

10,512,020

10,038,850

Total liabilities

12,198,935

11,772,667

136,604
4,815

136,604
4,815

141,419

141,419

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

33,534,783
6,491,434

33,534,783
3,376,005

Total net position

40,026,217

36,910,788

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liability
Other post-employment benefit obligations
Note payable - net of current portion
Certificates of obligation payable - net of current
portion

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension economic/demographic gains
OPEB economic/demographic gains
Total deferred inflows of resources

CITY OF CANYON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATER AND SEWER FUND
ENTERPRISE FUND
For the Five Months Ended February 29, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Water sales
Sewer charges
Permits and licenses
Lease and other income
Total revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel costs
Supplies and contractual services
Depreciation
Intercity charges
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - BEGINNING
NET POSITION - ENDING

Budget
Five Months
Ended
02/29/2020

Actual
Five Months
Ended
02/29/2020

$

$

2,145,833
1,188,333
7,333

2,147,136
3,192,287
5,450

Variance

$

1,303
2,003,954
(1,883)

11,583

17,280

5,697

3,353,082

5,362,153

2,009,071

741,796
1,372,303
47,898

674,230
929,693
417,230
52,300

2,161,997

2,073,453

88,544

1,191,085

3,288,700

2,097,615

67,566
442,610
(417,230)
(4,402)

4,167
(518,949)

26,553
(149,824)

22,386
369,125

(514,782)

(123,271)

391,511

676,303
(505,114)

3,165,429

2,489,126

(50,000)

171,189

3,115,429

36,910,788

36,910,788

$ 37,587,091

$ 40,076,217

455,114
2,944,240
$

2,489,126

CITY OF CANYON
BALANCE SHEET
GOLF FUND
ENTERPRISE FUND
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

02/29/2020
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Less accumulated depreciation

$

133,503
156,911
137,529
427,943

9/30/2019

$

65,675
156,911
137,529
360,115

397,138
460,018
709,452
1,248,276
720,958
(2,110,807)

397,138
460,018
709,452
1,248,276
720,958
(2,031,236)

Total noncurrent assets

1,425,035

1,504,606

Total assets

1,852,978

1,864,721

33,549
34,882
79,095
907

33,549
36,249
77,728
907

148,433

148,433

97,424
7,937
11,591
3,575,904
2,500
124,281
150,967

119,079
7,937
11,591
3,017,986
19,775
2,500
120,348
146,773

3,970,604

3,445,989

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred pension contributions
Deferred pension deficient earnings
Deferred OPEB contributions
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Compensated absences - current
Note payable - current
Certificates of obligation payable - current
Total current liabilities

CITY OF CANYON
BALANCE SHEET
GOLF FUND
ENTERPRISE FUND
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

02/29/2020

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liability
Other post-employment benefit obligations
Note payable

9/30/2019

22,627
224,535
121,138
185,835

22,627
224,535
121,138
292,603

758,032

908,999

Total noncurrent liabilities

1,312,167

1,569,902

Total liabilities

5,282,771

5,015,891

41,082
1,955

41,082
1,955

43,037

43,037

Certificates of obligation payable - net of current
portion

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension economic/demographic gains
OPEB economic/demographic gains
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

89,403
(3,413,800)

89,403
(3,135,177)

Total net position

(3,324,397)

(3,045,774)

CITY OF CANYON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GOLF FUND
ENTERPRISE FUND
For the Five Months Ended February 29, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Golf services
Sales of goods
Other income
Total revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel costs
Supplies and contractual services
Depreciation
Intercity charges
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET DEFICIT - BEGINNING
NET DEFICIT - ENDING

Budget
Five Months
Ended
02/29/2020

Actual
Five Months
Ended
02/29/2020

$

$

305,208
142,283

164,552
74,477

Variance

$

(140,656)
(67,806)

417

49

(368)

447,908

239,078

(208,830)

269,421
308,273
21,283

273,005
189,254
79,571
-

(3,584)
119,019
(79,571)
21,283

598,977

541,830

57,147

(151,069)

(302,752)

(151,683)

42
-

36
(25,907)

(6)
(25,907)

42

(25,871)

(25,913)

(151,027)

(328,623)

(177,596)

171,466

50,000

(121,466)

20,439

(278,623)

(299,062)

(3,045,774)

(3,045,774)

$ (3,196,801) $ (3,374,397) $

(299,062)

CITY OF CANYON
SCHEDULE OF SALES TAX COLLECTIONS
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Month
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
Total
Less CEDC's 25%

2016-2017
Collections

2017-2018
Collections

2018-2019
Collections

Year-to Date
2019-2020
Collections

227,753
258,016
216,890
262,010
270,864
182,909
201,855
312,853
190,405
207,521
245,043
219,684

231,485
294,952
220,749
225,820
320,829
220,711
260,761
331,122
217,963
230,351
264,752
230,520

235,520
297,762
261,394
242,562
295,203
302,480
229,684
276,064
239,182
248,431
281,787
245,711

253,690
278,470
272,371
266,319
334,436

2,795,803

3,050,015

3,155,780

1,405,286

(698,951)
2,096,852

(762,504)
2,287,511

(788,945)
2,366,835

(351,322)
1,053,965

REGARDING ITEM 12

AGENDA

To:

Joe Price, City Manager

From:

Joel Wright, Director of Finance

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on February 29, 2020 Investment
Report by Finance Director Joel Wright

I have prepared a Schedule of Cash & Cash Equivalents as of February 29, 2020, for the City
of Canyon. The accounts are presented by fund.
All cash is deposited with the City’s depository bank, Happy State Bank, in checking accounts,
short-term certificates of deposit or Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) accounts.
A summary of cash, available and designated/restricted, is presented on the second page of the
schedule. Available cash as of February 29, 2020 = $6,409,224
Also presented on the second page of the schedule is the City’s current status with regard to the
required reserve as stated in the Investment Policy. The policy requires the unassigned fund
balance of the City’s General Fund be maintained between 25% of the current fiscal year
budgeted expenditures for the General Fund. As of February 29, 2020, the unassigned fund
balance was $5,656,468 which is approximately 51% of the budgeted expenditures of the
General fund for fiscal year 2019-2020.
I have prepared a Schedule of Secured Deposits as of February 29, 2020, for the City of
Canyon.
Balances of all accounts included in the City’s depository contract with Happy State Bank
totaled $11,473,736 as of February 29, 2020 (Note: this includes the accounts of the CEDC).
The total market value of securities pledged as of February 29, 2020 was $11,841,062.
The cash deposits held by the City of Canyon’s depository bank, Happy State Bank, were
adequately secured by FDIC insurance and securities pledged by the bank for the benefit of the
City of Canyon as of February 29, 2020.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
I move to approve/not approve the Investment Report for the City of Canyon as of February
29, 2020.

City of Canyon

CITY OF CANYON
SCHEDULE OF SECURED DEPOSITS
FEBRUARY 29, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Checking accounts and short-term certificates of deposit
secured by Happy State Bank pledged securities:
City of Canyon:
General Fund
Checking account
Certificates of deposit
Debt Service Fund - checking account
Water & Sewer (Utility) Fund -checking account
Water & Sewer (Utility) Fund - restricted
Golf Fund - checking account
Capital Fund - checking account
Board of City Development - checking account
Emergency Management Fund - checking account
LEOSE Fund - checking account
Library Gifts & Memorials Fund - checking account
D-FY-IT Fund - checking account
Total City of Canyon
Canyon Economic Development Corporation
CEDC - checking account
CEDC Marketing - checking account
CEDC - certificate of deposit
Total CEDC
Total deposits secured by pledged securities

Bank Account
Balance
02/29/2020

Bank Account
Balance
9/30/2019

$

$

925,972
977,806
312,985
576,928
32,356
121,557
337,999
43,759
7,132
11,879
3,577
564
3,352,514

461,001
973,062
196,681
405,520
93,930
56,679
556,927
69,255
7,128
9,798
3,010
562
2,833,553

157,447
640,107
59,783
797,554
4,150,068

124,201
697,611
59,470
821,812
3,655,365

909,717
5,888,871
402,979
7,201,567

902,566
2,261,221
633,928
3,797,715

$

121,018
3,918,733
7,574,098

$

11,871,664

Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) and CDARS accounts
secured by FDIC-insured institutions
City of Canyon:
General Fund - ICS account
Water & Sewer (Utility) Fund - ICS account
Water & Sewer (Utility) Fund - restricted - ICS account
Total City of Canyon
Canyon Economic Development Corporation
CDARS account
Total FDIC-insured deposits
Total deposits

$

122,101
7,323,668
11,473,736

Securities Pledged by Happy State Bank for City of Canyon
Total market value of pledged securities (see attached)

$

11,841,062

REGARDING ITEM 13

AGENDA

To:

Mayor and Commission

From:

Chuck Hester, City Attorney

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Ordinance No. 1124 Amending
Section 51.10 of the Code of Ordinances to Provide for Developer Participation
Agreements to Facilitate Utility Extensions to Serve New Subdivisions.

We have a proposed new subdivision that will utilize unplatted land in the Pioneer Estates
subdivision. In order to accommodate that development there will be two short utility
extensions required. In the case of a larger project, the City would follow the usual practice of
going out for bids and award the bid to a responsible bidder. In the case of smaller, less costly
projects, it is not cost effective to follow the usual competitive bid procedure, especially in cases
where the developer has a prime contractor on site and the City is able to contract for the utility
extension by using the developer’s contractor.
Fortunately the TEXAS LOCAL
GOVERNMENT CODE allows municipalities to take advantage of cost saving by complying
with Sections 212.071-212.074 which involves adoption of an ordinance to permit developer
participation agreements and then negotiate and sign a written agreement consistent with the
ordinance. The Ordinance before you is proposed for that purpose.
Joe, Dan and I can answer any question you may have either before or during the meeting.
Joe
806-452-9731
Dan 806-671-0300
Chuck 806-654-2108, office is 806-655-1016.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
I move to (approve / not approve) the adoption of Ordinance No. 1124 amending section
51.10 of the Code of Ordinances.

City of Canyon

ORDINANCE NO. 1124
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS,
AMENDING §51.10 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES
TO PROVIDE FOR DEVELOPER PARTICIPATION
CONTRACTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS AS
AUTHORIZED BY SUBCHAPTER C OF CHAPTER
212, TITLE 7, LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that in certain Public Works Projects involving extension
of utility infrastructure to serve new subdivision development, it is desirable and cost effective to
contract with the developer of the subdivision for minor utility extensions in lieu of a competitive
sealed bid as would otherwise be required by Chapter 252 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE;
and,
WHEREAS, §212.071 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE permits a municipality with a
population of 5,000 or more to make a contract with a developer of a subdivision of land in the
municipality not including a building related to the development without complying with the bid
procedure under §252.021 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE upon compliance with the
requirements of §212.072–§212.074 TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF CANYON;
SECTION 1:
§51.10 of the Code is amended by adding Subdivision E which shall provide as follows:
(E.)

The City may contract with a subdivision developer to participate in extension of
utilities to serve the subdivision under plans approved by the Director of Public
Works and City Manager in an amount not to exceed 30% of the total contract price
for utilities in the subdivision, with the City participation portion of the costs to be
separately stated in the written estimate furnished by the developer’s contractor
prior to commencement of the work. The City shall only be liable for the payment
of the share agreed upon by the City and the developer in a written participation
agreement between the City and the developer, which shall be expressed as a lump
sum amount. At the time the participation agreement is signed by the City and the
developer, the developer must post a performance bond which complies with
Chapter 2253 TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE to ensure completion of the project. The
City shall be charged only for labor and materials reasonably required to complete
the work and shall not be charged for any part of the contractor or developer’s
overhead, profit, commissions, mobilization costs, taxes, insurance or other costs
of the project except actual labor and materials for the City’s share of the project as
defined by the participation agreement. The developer’s books and records shall
be available for inspection by the City upon request.
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SECTION 2:
A developer who enters into a participation agreement with the City shall indemnify and
hold the City and its employees, agents and elected or appointed officials harmless against
all claims, lawsuits, judgments, costs or expenses for injury, death or damage to property
which may arise from the project which is the subject of the participation agreement, not
attributable directly to any act or conduct on the part of any employee or official acting on
behalf of the City. Developer shall provide insurance coverage against liability claims as
above described in an amount required by City.
SECTION 3:
This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption.

ADOPTED by the City Commission of the City of Canyon on April 6, 2020.

___________________________________
GARY HINDERS, Mayor
ATTEST:
___________________________________
GRETCHEN MERCER, City Clerk
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REGARDING ITEM 14

AGENDA

To:

Mayor and Commission

From:

Chuck Hester, City Attorney

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Proposed Interlocal Agreement
Between the City of Canyon and WTAMU Regarding Spur 48.

As you will recall, we have been in negotiations with TxDOT and WTAMU over the last couple
of years, possibly as long as three years with a view to assisting WT with its long-term plan to
further develop and expand its facilities along Russell Long Blvd, also known as Spur 48. By
meeting time I expect TxDOT will have substantially completed the work agreed upon
consisting primarily of patching, asphalt overlay and pavement markings. At the last meeting
when the Commission considered acceptance of the right of way from TxDOT, Joe discussed
work the City wanted to complete at the time the TxDOT project was going forward. My
understanding is that work is also substantially complete. WT wanted to develop the
improvements along Spur 48 as a City Street, not as a part of the State Highway system. The
City of Canyon required that the roadway be brought up to our standards before acceptance.
Those prerequisites have now been accomplished or are very near completion. The ROW has
been accepted by the City as you recall.
On March 9th, a final meeting was held at the City Managers conference room to finalize details
of the relationship between the City and WT going forward. The attached agreement is the
result of that meeting. One key point is that the cost of future pavement markings and lighting
for the water tower on the east side of Spur 48 will be shared between the City and WT. The
city will maintain the road to include seal coating as a part of the normal rotation and WT will
maintain all of its improvements in the ROW or along the north side of the Spur. WT will also
grant any necessary easements to facilitate performance of the agreement.
We will be prepared to answer any questions you may have at the meeting.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
I move to (approve / reject) the Interlocal Agreement between WTAMU and the City of
Canyon.

City of Canyon

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN CITY OF CANYON AND
WEST TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY
1.

Parties:
This Agreement is made by and between the City of Canyon (“City”), a home rule

municipal corporation in Randall County, Texas, and West Texas A&M University (hereinafter
referred to as “WTAMU”) pursuant to the authority granted by the “Texas Interlocal Cooperation
Act,” Chapter 791 TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE providing for the cooperation between local
governmental entities. In consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained herein,
the parties agree as follows:
Recitals:
2.

Authority:
2.1.

This Agreement is made and shall be performed under the authority of Chapter 791

of the TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, "Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act". Each party is required to
pay for services, labor or material under this Agreement with regard to governmental functions
and services or administrative functions shall make such payments from current revenues available
to the paying party in an amount which reasonably and fairly compensates the party providing
labor or materials or performing the service under this Agreement.
2.2.

The governing bodies of each party find that the subject of this contract is desirable

and necessary for the benefit of the public and that each party has the legal authority to perform
and to provide the governmental function which is the subject matter of this contract.
3.

Purpose:
3.1.

WTAMU intends to construct improvements along and across Russell Long Blvd.,

also known as Spur 48 in reliance upon the City’s willingness to assume control of the road from
TXDOT upon completion of certain roadway improvements by TXDOT pursuant to an agreement
between the City and TXDOT and thereafter designate Spur 48 as a city street.
3.2.

The City acquired control of Spur 48 from TXDOT in MarchMarch 2020.

3.3.

The parties to this agreement will each have duties and responsibilities under this

agreement and will share certain costs as more fully set forth below.

Interlocal Agreement
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NOW THEREFORE:
4.

Terms:
4.1.

The City is responsible for:
4.1.1. Installation and maintenance of all permanent traffic control signage
4.1.2. Maintenance of the driving surface. The street will be seal coated as part of
the City's seal coating rotation. Should WTAMU request an alternative
treatment for the roadway surface, it will pay any cost which might exceed
the cost of seal coating, provided any such treatment will be scheduled by
the City as a part of its normal seal coat rotation plan.
4.1.3. Upkeep of pavement marking between seal coat rotations.
4.1.4. Establishing the posted speed limit for the roadway.
4.1.5. All damage to the roadway occurring due to the City of Canyon initiated
projects.
4.1.6. Maintaining (mowing) all portions of the right of way that are not privately
owned on the south side of Russell Long Blvd from Hospital Drive to the
First United Center property line.
4.1.7.4.1.6.

4.2.

Snow removal as needed.

WTAMU is responsible for:
4.2.1. Allowing the City to tie in water tower overflow into storm system.Storm
sewer
4.2.2. All landscaping (grass, trees, etc.).
4.2.3. All islands (grass, crushed stone, trees, etc.) - when and if installed on
Russell Long Blvd.
4.2.4. Construction of all permanent structures built in the roadway.
4.2.5. Existing or future sSidewalks and drives in the right of way that are not
privately owned.
4.2.6. Irrigation in the right of way or islands.
4.2.7. Drainage ditches.
4.2.8. Lighting fixtures and poles.
4.2.9. All damage to the roadway occurring due to WTAMU initiated projects.

Interlocal Agreement
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4.2.10. Maintaining (mowing) all of the right of way on the north side of Russell
Long Blvd.
4.2.10.4.2.11. Maintaining (mowing) all portions of the right of way that are not
privately owned on the south side of Russell Long Blvd from Hospital Drive
to the First United Center property line.
4.2.11.4.2.12. Granting any necessary easements to the City in order to facilitate
the performance of this agreement
4.3.

The City and WTAMU:
4.3.1. Storm Sewer Maintenance and upkeep
4.3.1.4.3.2.

Will share in the expense of repainting roadway markings after each

roadway maintenance cycle and painting of curbs.
4.3.2.4.3.3.

Will jointly approve and share in the cost of lighting and installation

of lighting for the east elevated water storage facility along Spur 48.
4.4.

WTAMU shall be responsible for constructing all on site improvements and

landscaping at its facilities whether specifically listed above or not.
4.5.

The parties will negotiate an easement in favor of the City for the water tower and

any piping on WTAMU property.
4.4.4.6.

Any future improvements along Russell Long Blvd, such as concrete base,

medians, curbs and sidewalks, will be jointly planned and budgeted by both parties.
4.5.4.7.

This Agreement shall be effective when approved by the governing body of

WTAMU and the City.
5.

Duration:
This Agreement provides for a permanent improvement and maintenance of Spur 48 as
long as Spur 48 remains a Canyon city street.

Interlocal Agreement
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement pursuant to
authorization of their respective governing bodies on the date set forth below opposite the
signatures of their authorized representatives.
CITY OF CANYON, TEXAS, a Texas home rule
municipal corporation

_________________________
Date

By:______________________________________
GARY HINDERS, Mayor

WEST TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY

_________________________
Date

By:______________________________________
WALTER WENDLER, PresidentName:
Title:

Interlocal Agreement
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REGARDING ITEM 15

AGENDA

To:

Honorable Mayor and City Commission

From:

Joe Price, City Manager

Date:

April 6, 2020

Re:

Discuss Potential Project for Texas Community Development Block Grant
Program Rural Economic Development (Main Street Program Downtown
Revitalization Grant).

The City of Canyon is looking at potentially applying for a grant that is specific for Downtown
and Main Street. The Texas Department of Agriculture’s Downtown Revitalization and Main
Street Programs primary objective is to provide infrastructure improvements to address the
conditions that contribute to the deterioration in an area designated as slum or blighted in the
applicant community's downtown or main street area.
Funds may be provided for the following:
• Sidewalks and lighting
• Activities required to eliminate architectural barriers for the disabled
• Water lines, storage and pumping facilities, and related items
• Sewer lines, lift stations, and related items
• Road construction/renovation, to include curb and gutter and related drainage
• Natural gas lines and related items
• Electric power lines and transformers
• Utilities including natural gas, and electric
• High-speed internet infrastructure, with prior approval from TDA
• Award administration (Project Administration)
• Demolition and clearance activity of non-residential structures.
Grant Amount: $500,000 (used to be $350,000 and $100,000)
City of Canyon Minimum Match: $75,000
[Example: City of Canyon puts in 75 cents and in return; we get 5 dollars and 75 cents]
Minimum Total Project Amount: $575,000
Project Activities:
a) Construction
b) Engineering
c) Project Administration
Informational Item – Future Agenda Item with PRPC

City of Canyon

